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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Neshanic Mills in Hillsborough Township on the east bank of the
South Branch of the Raritan River is a small agri-industrial complex
of the last quarter of the 19th century. The structures in the dis-
trict are the mill, adjacent carriage barn, two dwellings, and two
bridges within the district. There is also a fieldstone foundation
south of the carriage barn.

James P. Snell's History of Hunterdon and Somerset Counties
refers to Neshanic Mills as ""Neshanic Station". 1In his book he men-
tions Neshanic Station as follows: "Neshanic is situated at the
northwest declivity of the Neshanic Mountain. It contains (1881)
one Reformed (Dutch) Church, one hotel (temporance), a district school,
two stores, and some twenty-five dwellings. About ten more are at
Neshanic Station. The country around is undulating and beautiful".

The 0ld grist mill is referred to later in Snell's book: "Andrew
Lane is proprietor of a grist-mill on the South Branch, at Neshanic
Station".

Today, the grist-mill, its carriage sheds, and the two residences
opposite the mill (across Main Road) are as they might have looked in
the late 1870's. The open space surrounding these structures and the
railroad and vehicle bridges add to an atmosphere of an o0ld country
mill of the nineteenth century.

All buildings within the historic district are in a generally
good state of repair with no exceptions.

There are only three dwelling structures within the district;
the mill is no. 62, the house facing Main Road is no. 58, and the
other house is no. 60.

Number of Structures and Intrusions Within the District

There are a total of four (4) buildings within the district and
no intrusions.

Distinctive Qualities and General Description of District During
Period of Significance

The area surrounding the district has remained untouched by
"modernization". 1In the third quarter of the nineteenth century the
area was busy providing the needed milling services to local farmers
from both sides of the South Branch, but especially from the Neshanic
area.
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Neshanic Mills is the last remaining mill complex in the region
and one of the few .extant grist mills on the South Branch of the Raritan
River in Somersét County. The three story frame mill building, adjacent
carriage/storage barn, and millers houses, coupled with the vehicular
and railroad brldges project a clear image of a late 19th century small
milling industry.

The Andrew Lane Gristmill, in 1880, was the second largest of
four grist mills in Hillsborough Township. Lane had a capital investment
in the mill of some $25,000 dedbers. He employed from 3 to 5 workers
all year round for $2 per day for skilled labor and $1.25 for unskilled.
The mill had four runs of stone with a maximum potential 200 bushel per
day production. Half of the milling completed was custom grinding. The
source of power was a 50 horsepower iron turbine. (Tenth United States
Census - 1880 Special Schedules of Manufacturers #'s 7 & 8. Hillsborough
Township, Somerset County).

Industry

The land for some distance around Neshanic was owned in 1683 by
John Bennett. The tract embraced several hundred acres, extended to
the division line between East and West Jersey, and was bounded on
the north by the South Branch of the Raritan River.

As the adjoining community of Neshanic grew and the farms around
it, there was a demand for various mills for the various markets. It
was in 1770 that Bergen Huff built the first mill at Neshanic. It
stood some distance below the present (188l) one, and was abandoned
about 1810, Some of the remains of that mill were still visible in
the late 1800's. Other mills were erected about 1810. 1In 1836 these
mills were purchased from Cornelius and Peter Beekman by Judge Corle,
and were thereafter referred to as Corle's Mills, They were again
sold several years later by Judge Corle, and were owned by five or
six different parties. During this period of transferring of tltle,
the mills kept on producing the grist for market.
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The mill is situated on the east bank of the South Branch of
the Raritan River, and only about one mile from the village of Neshanic.
It was erected in the year 1876.

In the year 1873 two railroads serviced this area and were respon-
sible for transporting the farm produce and other products manufactured
in the area to regional market centers (New Brunswick, Perth Amboy, and
New York City). The line that used the present railroad bridge was the
South Branch Railroad later the Central Railroad of New Jersey. The
other line, the Easton and Amboy Railroad later the Lehigh Valley Rail-
road, crossed the South Branch a few hundred yards to the north of the
South Branch R.R.

During the mid- to late-nineteenth century the area around the
mill and bridges was primarily farms.

The present land use to be found within the district is single
family residential and multi-family residential, open space, and com-
mercial.

Some of the prominent geographical features to be found in Neshanic
Mills are: the South Branch of the Raritan River that forms the western
boundary of the district; a modest bluff that rises in the center of
the district near the railroad easement; and a slight decline in the
land running from south to north.

A few of the man-made features other than the buildings in the
district are: the railroad truss bridge and the vehicular and pedestrian
bridge. ’

The following is a description of the structures in the district:

1. Lane Grist Mill (Neshanic Mill), 1876, no. 62 Main Road. This
is a 3-story mill typical of the post Civil-War period. Built in
1876, it stradles the river on stone and cement foundations. The
windows on those sides not facing onto Main Road are all one on one
double-hung. The windows on the side facing Main Road, with the
exception of only one, are all six on six. The siding is clapboard.
The roof is of a gambrel design and covered with slate shingles.
The walls are of braced timber construction. On top of the roof and
centered is a square cupola. There is a short, roofed protrusion
from the roof's ridge line on the side facing Main Road. This
arrangement was for the block and falls employed in lowering the
various ground grains from storage. The structure is presently
under restoration.
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Shepherd House, 2nd quarter 19th century, 3rd quarter 19th century,
no. 58 Main Road. This is a wood framed two-story structure with
later additions. The foundation is of random-coursed rubble con-
struction. There are four chimnies in all: one at either end of
the main section of the house, and two on the wing. The windows in
the house are almost all one on one and double hung. There are
shutters on the windows of the main section only and they are
louvered. The siding is of the narrow-width clapboard type.

Levering House, c. 1850, 1880, no. 60 Main Road. This wood frame
house is two stories with random width clapboard siding. There is a
retaining wall to the rear of the structure that is of random-
coursed rubble construction. The windows on the first floor are two
on two while those on the second floor are nine on six. There are
no shutters employed on the house at all. There is a chimney
located slightly to the west of the center of the building. The
roof is a simple gable and has slate shingles. There are two small
windows directly below theeave of the roof on the west end and they
are four on two sash.

A porch is attached to the northern side of the house, and is

a late nineteenth century addition. An addition was attached

in the 3rd quarter of the 19th century to the west end, carrying
over the basic exterior appearance of the structure.

Carriage/Storage barn. 3rd quarter 19th century. Two story

frame mill barn. Floor on ground level has seven front carriage
bays with enclosed storage bins in the rear. The second floor

has a one bay front gable end sliding door entrance to storage
facilities. The roof is gable covered with corrugated metal. The
structure has clapboards. Built into a bank making the roadway
entrance one story and the rear two stories. Interior not inves-
tigated.

Lenticular Truss Vehicular Bridge. (1896). Built by the Berlin
Iron Bridge Company of East Berlin, Connecticut,this bridge has
two spans, each 140' 7 1/2" in length. The width of the roadway
bridge, from rail to rail is 17 1/2 feet. Each side has a pedes-
trian walkway. Basically intact as originally constructed minor
alterations include reinforcement plates welded onto the original
chords in the 1930's and the end sections encased in concrete.
There is evidence of corrosion and deterioration in the bridge.

A structural engineer's report in 1969 recommended its replace-
ment. Instead the load limit was reduced to five tons and traffic
limited to one way regulated by a traffic light.
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6. Central Railroad Through Pratt Truss Bridge (ca. 1900). Running

between the mill and the vehicle bridge, this single track high

through truss bridge is also two spans @n piers of rock-faced cut
stone. The approach to this railroad bridge has a girder truss on
concrete foundation over Main Street. Thé concrete is dated 1916.
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With the advent of the railroad as a major carrier of produce
to the regional markets, the lines of the South Branch Railroad and
the Easton and Amboy Railroad stretched out to the South Branch of
the Raritan. In so doing they created a major link between the rural
farm centers, the mills for those centers and the major wholesale
and retail markets.

It was in the year 1876 that Andrew Lane erected and operated
a grist-mill at "Neshanic Station". This new mill was on the site
of the o0ld Corle's Mills, since razed.

The Lane Grist-Mill (Neshanic Mill) is the last remaining mill
in the area that once provided a very much needed service to the local
farmers.

It was through what is presently referred to as the Neshanic Mills
that local farmers processed their crops of corn, grain, etc. and from
there was shipped to the various markets. It is in conjunction with
the railroad bridge and vehicle bridge, that the mill helped in the
further development of the area as a local center of commerce and trade.

Restoration and Preservation Activities

There presently exists a very active Historic District Commission
that is playing a vigorous part in the decision making processes that
have any effect on the historic districts within the township. The
Township of Hillsborough has had Historic District zoning for several
years and has been recently revised. The citizens that reside within
the historic district take a great deal of pride in the fact that this
area of the region has the history that it does and so make a special
effort to maintain their homes. The 0ld grist-mill is presently under-
going a complete restoration as are the other two houses opposite the
mill.

Transportation/Engineering

The Lenticular Truss Vehicular Bridge at Neshanic Mills is the only

known extant through lenticular truss in New Jersey. Further, it is,
perhaps, the southernmost lenticular bridge built by the Berlin Bridge
Company of East Berlin, Connecticut.
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The Berlin Iron Bridge Company was one of the giant bridge builders
in America in the late 19th-early 20th century. Their exclusive spe-
ciality, the 'parabolic truss' was first designed and patented in 1878 by
William O. Douglas of New York. Several crude examples of this type
truss were built under the name Corrugated Metal Company, but Charles M.
Jarvis in joining the company and changing the name made the company
successful.

Jarvis and Douglas modified their bridge design in 1885, While
not an original system,the Douglas patent introduced this form of
bridge to the United States. Save for a few exceptions, all American
bridges of this type were built by the Berlin Iron Bridge Company.
Unlike most bridge fabricators, Berlin Company built mostly vehicular
highway bridges. Between 1880 and 1895 they erected some 300 "parabolic"
or lenticular trusses, mostly in New England and New York.
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Central Raidroad of New Jersey J) v d(@/Vf;;ﬁwj

1100 Raymond Blvd. QV&

Newark NJ 07102 fle %hvﬁp
Edith Slack M
223 E, Kennedy St.

Syracuse NY

Mr & Mrs Daniel Cahill
Grist Mi1l House

Box 272A R.D.1
Neshanic NJ 08853

Arthur R, Bothers & W, Eddy Heath
25 Heath Drive
Somerville NJ 08876

Rexall Drug & Chemical Co,
8480 Beverly Blvd.
Los Angeles, California

Mr & Mrs J Cyburt Firley St. 1
567 Foothill Road
Bridgewater NJ

Somerset County Board of Freeholders
County Office Building
Somerville NJ 08876



40

[ORTRITIUUIPRRS e AR

/6! 7 AR

A
wawh N A

20d481a  DIHOLSIH
WJ.:E DINVHSIN

mo [AVAYASTHD DI1H0LSIH

um<u 5\X _L INAVX\

LNV LINSNOD -

NS SRS
HONOIOHS TTIH

AAVANNOG  LDINLSIA D150 LS) - ——

dibL o olyy

H31S193y
TYNOILYN

-

A

002 STVNDI  HONI |

334 :3IVO8 %
2vpd 4
RAANTIN
| s g
— M.« vwiﬂi i.sM\,wIA . M
_ {uSoj %sv.a .-AW -2
& )
2|2
< 3
-3 _ &
- | e ———
R ¢
2|15
b |
0 D
z
5l ©
avod | LNV
——J(® [ ®
m i -
z S3ATH MJ/\,: xvd
3 £ |
£ #
2 [z 2
2 =
2 A
; ERE
2 2
& g
n 3




